CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
 1.	Respondent is subject to the provisions of the Federal
Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 in the operation of the
Maple Creek No. 2 Mine, and I have jurisdiction over the parties
and the subject matter of this proceeding.
 2.	The condition described in Findings of Fact Nos. 6 and
7 was a violation of the approved ventilation plan and therefore
of 30 C.F.R. § 75.316.
 3.	The violation referred to above was of such nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a mine safety hazard.
DISCUSSION
In longwall mining, when the coal is removed from the face,
the unsupported roof falls creating a gob area.  Because methane
is released from the gob, it is imperative that substantial air
pressure be maintained on the gob to dilute the methane.  After
the face is advanced, subsequent roof falls may occur back in
the gob area and additional methane may be released into the
active workings.  That such an occurrence has not happened at
the subject mine does not make the occurrence unlikely.  The
ventilation plan was devised and approved to prevent such an
occurrence.  To the extent it is deviated from and pressure on
the gob is diminished, the occurrence of a methane ignition
becomes likely.  Ignition sources include the longwall shear
which causes sparks while cutting, and possible permissibility
violations on equipment entering the face area.  If a methane
ignition or explosion occurred, it would cause serious, possibly
fatal injuries.  Whether a violation is significant and substan-
tial must be determined as of the time it is cited.  The fact
that it would likely have been spotted and corrected as a result
of Respondent's weekly inspection is irrelevant.
 4.	The violation was serious because of the likelihood
that it would cause serious injuries to miners.
 5.	Since there was no coal production between the time the
regulator fell off and the day the citation was issued,
Respondent's negligence was slight.  The deviation on the fan
chart was not such as should have alerted Respondent to the
ventilation problem,
 6.	Based on the criteria in section 110(i) of the Act, I
conclude that an appropriate penalty for the violation found
herein is $300.
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